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REGION 4


61 Forsyth Street


Atlanta, Georgia  30303-3104

February 29, 2008
Mr. Wayne M. Reiber, Manager
Environmental Assessment & Remediation

Cabot Corporation
Corporate Safety, Health and Environmental Affairs

Two Seaport Lane,  Suite 1300

Boston, Massachusetts  02219-2019
Re:  December 4, 2007, Cabot Carbon/Koppers
Supplemental Groundwater Quality

Characterization Work Plan

Dear Mr. Reiber:

Thank you for the December 4, 2007, Cabot Carbon/Koppers Supplemental Groundwater

Quality Characterization Work Plan.  We have reviewed the Work Plan and have the following comments on the Work Plan:
2.1 Potential for Contamination in Hawthorn Group Deposits at Cabot Site
EPA is requiring Cabot to install at least two Hawthorn Group wells.  Both of these wells should be completed in the upper part of the Hawthorn, in the relatively permeable zone that is being monitored by Beazer at wells HG-21S, HG-20S and HG-26S to the east of the Koppers property.  One of the new Hawthorn Group wells should be installed slightly downgradient (northeast) of the former Northeast Lagoon.  The second well should be installed downgradient of HG-26S (Beazer’s upper Hawthorn monitoring well in the western part of the former Cabot Carbon property).  Based upon recently obtained surficial aquifer monitoring data, the optimal location for the second Hawthorn monitoring well is on a line between the former Cabot Carbon lagoons and monitoring well ESE-007, at a location several hundred feet downgradient from the former Cabot lagoons.  Depending upon the outcome of the initial Hawthorn monitoring by Cabot, additional Hawthorn Group wells may be necessary.     
Recent monitoring of the upper and lower Hawthorn Group by Beazer in areas to the east of the Koppers property (including a location in the western part of the former Cabot Carbon property) indicate substantial concentrations of naphthalene in the upper Hawthorn Group and above-maximum contaminant levels (MCL) concentrations of benzene in both the upper and lower Hawthorn Group.  Hawthorn monitoring wells recently installed by Beazer to the east of the Koppers property were not placed to evaluate potential ground-water contamination originating from a Cabot Carbon source.  Nevertheless, they may be detecting some contamination from a Cabot Carbon source (or a co-mingling of plumes from both Cabot Carbon and Koppers).  This statement is particularly true for the lower Hawthorn Group wells that Beazer installed east of Koppers.  The identified direction of groundwater flow in the lower Hawthorn Group across the Koppers property is to the northwest.  This flow direction indicates that lower Hawthorn Group contamination detected in wells located east of Koppers may have resulted from vertical leakage of contaminants through the middle Hawthorn clay at locations east of the easternmost line of new Hawthorn Group wells.  The area where such leakage may be occurring includes the former Cabot Carbon site and the area where Cabot Carbon-derived contamination is or has historically been present in the surficial aquifer.  Hawthorn Group groundwater contamination further east of the easternmost Hawthorn wells is likely, based on the recent results from Beazer’s monitoring wells east of the Koppers Site.  Such contamination, if present, might be attributed to a Koppers source, to a Cabot Carbon source (including the former Northeast Lagoon) or to a combination of these sources.  For this reason, Hawthorn wells east of the wells that Koppers has constructed are needed and monitoring of these wells needs to be done so that source attribution can be made.

Cabot has assumed responsibility for remedial actions to address groundwater contamination originating at the former Northeast Lagoon.  This area is probably the most significant remaining residual source of Site ground-water contamination to the east of the Koppers property.  Monitoring well ITW-13 is located in the area of the lagoon, monitors the lower part of the surficial aquifer, and has yielded numerous samples with benzene concentrations greatly in excess of its 1 ug/L Florida MCL.  Other organic contaminants have also been routinely detected in samples from this well.  Some of these contaminants have been present in concentrations that might be a concern from a risk perspective, or that exceed the cleanup goal established in the 1990 Record of Decision.  The ITW-13 contamination at the base of the surficial aquifer includes contaminants that are known to have migrated downward across the clay at the top of the Hawthorn Group on the Koppers property, resulting in significant Hawthorn Group contamination in that area.  Because of the similar contamination scenarios, there is a need for investigation of the potential contamination in the upper Hawthorn Group in the former Northeast Lagoon area.
2.2 Former Cabot Lagoons

Due to previously high concentrations of Cabot-related site contaminants at groundwater wells ESE-005 and ESE-006 on the former Cabot property, please update the expanded list of monitoring wells to include ESE-005 and ESE-006 for this one-time sampling event.
2.3 Interceptor Trench Effectiveness

The Five-Year Review identified eastward movement of contaminants through the surficial aquifer beneath the Cabot Carbon interceptor trench as a possibility. The most definitive approach for resolving this concern is to construct additional monitoring points to the east of the interceptor trench.  While several methods for dealing with the issue are acceptable, EPA recommends depth-discrete profiling of water quality in the lower part of the surficial aquifer, using a direct-push type of drilling rig.  Data from the depth-discrete profiling can be used to not only evaluate the vertical distribution of any contaminants east of the trench, but also to design a permanent monitoring well or wells east of the trench (if necessary, based on the vertical profiling results).

An obvious location for this work is in the vicinity of monitoring well WMW-17E.  Since the interceptor trench began operating, this monitoring well has periodically yielded samples with low concentrations of organic contaminants.   WMW-17E is screened over a 20-foot interval of the surficial aquifer, which likely means that any samples obtained from this well are a mixture of groundwater from mostly the upper part of the aquifer (presumably uncontaminated) and a small contribution of groundwater from the lower part of the aquifer (potentially significantly contaminated).   WMW-17E is also close to the aforementioned former Northeast Lagoon and is thus a good candidate for evaluating the potential that significantly contaminated groundwater near the base of the surficial aquifer is migrating underneath the trench.

A second location for depth-discrete monitoring is east of the trench and slightly north of monitoring well ESE-007.  ESE-007 is located near the trench, has yielded samples showing consistent contamination that is mostly or entirely attributable to the former Cabot Carbon operations, and has been identified as a location where concentrations of certain contaminants are likely to be increasing. 

A proposal to address this concern should be presented as an addendum to the supplemental characterization work plan provided to EPA.  It can be combined with a proposal to address the concern about Hawthorn Group contamination. 

Monitoring of Cabot Carbon Indicator Contaminants  

Hawthorn Group wells constructed as per the recommendations above have the potential to detect contamination from a Cabot Carbon source (including the former Northeast Lagoon), a Koppers source, or from a combination of releases from both sources.  For this reason, monitoring is needed of the organic contaminants that have been identified as indicators of Cabot Carbon contamination.  Such monitoring is needed at the recommended two new Hawthorn monitoring wells, and also at one or more of the surficial aquifer wells where contamination from Cabot Carbon is significant.  This latter recommendation is made because it will help to define which of the indicator contaminants that might be detected in the Hawthorn wells are in fact present in the surficial aquifer impacted by Cabot Carbon, and at what concentrations.  Further monitoring of Cabot Carbon indicator contaminants may be needed in additional wells, depending on the results of the initial Hawthorn monitoring work. 
Based on Cabot’s previously stated belief that some or all groundwater contamination that could be going below the groundwater interceptor trench comes from the Koppers Site operations, it would be prudent for Cabot to sample for unique indicator constituents related to the Koppers Site operations that were not produced by the former Cabot operations (including the Northeast lagoon).   EPA believes that such constituents exist and would welcome a dialogue with Cabot on this topic.
If we may be of assistance in this matter, please contact me at (404) 562-9120 or via e-mail at miller.scott@epa.gov.

Sincerely,

Scott Miller

Remedial Project Manager

Superfund Remedial Branch, Section C

Superfund Division
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